
 
 
 
 

 LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY 
 
 

 
 

Our Ref: 
 
 

  
Contact: 

 
Charlies Yankiah 

      

    Tel: 0151 330 1079 
      

    Date: 22 January 2019 
 

 
To: All Members of the Transport Committee  

Councillors  L Robinson (Chair), G Friel 
(Deputy Chair), R Abbey, D Baum, 
A Carr, J Dodd, S Foulkes, P Hayes, 
H Howard, J Jackson, D Johnson, 
A Lavelle, P McKinley, N Nicholas, 
M O'Mara OBE, G Pearl, G Philbin,         
K Roberts, J Stockton, S Murphy, 
C Rowe, H Thompson, J Williams and 
Councillor F Wynn 

  
 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 
You are requested to attend a meeting of the Transport Committee to be held on 
Thursday, 31 January 2019 at 2.00 pm in the Authority Chamber, Merseytravel 
Offices, No.1 Mann Island, Liverpool, L3 1BP. 
 
The agenda for the meeting is attached. 
 
Should Members need to declare an interest in any items included on the agenda, 
forms are obtainable from the Democratic Services Team or in the meeting. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Head of Paid Service 
 
 
Enc. 



 

 

Transport Committee 
 

31 January 2019 
 

Agenda 
 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence   
 

2.   Declarations of Interest  
 

 

3.   Minutes of the Last Meeting  1 - 8 

 To consider the minutes of the last meeting of the Transport 
Committee held on 10th January 2019. 
 

 

4.   Mersey Tunnel Tolls 2019/20  9 - 20 

 To consider a report to the Transport Committee that: - 
 

a) outlines the legal procedure for revising the level of 
the tolls; 
 

b) summarises how the current level of tolls was arrived 
at; and 

 
c) makes proposals for the level of tolls payable in 

2018/19. 
 

 

5.   Budget Setting Report 2019/20  21 - 38 

 To consider the report which details the: - 
 

a) draft revenue budget and capital programme for 
2019/20; 
 

b) the price/fare increases proposed for 2019/20; and 
 

c) the revenue grants payable to Merseytravel in 
respect of general operations and Mersey Tunnels for 
2019/20. 

 

 

6.   Quarterly Bus Update  39 - 46 

 To consider information on the Third Quarter of 2018/19 
with regard to achievements of the LCR Bus Alliance, the 
latest progress on improving the procurement management 
and quality of supported services through a series of 
reforms, progress on developing the commitment of the LCR 
Devolution Deal in respect of improving bus services and 

 



 

other key initiatives delivered to improve the bus offer 
across the region. 
 

7.   Public Question Time   

 Members of the public will be given the opportunity to ask 
questions which have been submitted in accordance with 
Meetings Standing Orders No. 11.  
 
A period of 30 minutes will be allocated for this item and 
copies of valid questions will be circulated at the meeting. 
 
Members of the public who wish to submit questions are 
asked to contact Democratic Services by either: 
 
Email: democratic.services@merseytravel.gov.uk 
 
Telephone: 0151 330 1086 
 
In writing: Democratic Services, Merseytravel, No.1 Mann 
Island, PO Box 1976, Liverpool, L69 3HN 
 
A pro-forma will be supplied which, for this meeting must be 
returned by 5.00pm on Monday 28th January 2019. In this 
respect, return details are set out in the pro-forma. 
 

 

8.   Petitions and Statements   

 Members of the public will be given the opportunity to submit 
a single petition or statement in accordance with Meetings 
Standing Orders No. 11. 
 
Members of the Public who wish to submit a single petition 
or statement are asked to contact Democratic Services by 
either: 
 
Email: democratic.services@merseytravel.gov.uk 
 
Telephone: 0151 330 1086 
 
In writing: Democratic Services, Merseytravel, No.1 Mann 
Island, PO Box 1976, Liverpool, L69 3HN 
 
All petitions and statements for this meeting should be 
submitted to Merseytravel, using the contact details above, 
by 5.00pm on Monday 28th January 2019. 

 

 

9.   Any Other Urgent Business Approved by the Chair   
 

mailto:democratic.services@merseytravel.gov.uk
mailto:democratic.services@merseytravel.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
Transport Committee 

 
 

 
Transport Committee 

 
10 January 2019 

 
 
Present: Councillor L Robinson, Chair 

Councillor G Friel, Deputy Chair 
 

 Councillors A Carr, J Dodd, S Foulkes, P Hayes, 
H Howard, D Johnson, A Lavelle, P McKinley, 
M O'Mara OBE, G Pearl, G Philbin, J Stockton, 
S Murphy, C Rowe, H Thompson, J Williams and 
F Wynn  
 

  

   
 

74. Apologies for Absence  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Dennis Baum, Jimmy 
Jackson, Keith Roberts and Nathalie Nicholas. 
 
 

75. Declarations of Interest  
 
Councillor Steve Foulkes declared a non-pecuniary interest in Item 3 – 
Minutes of the last meeting by virtue of being one of the petitioners. 
 
 

76. Minutes of the Last Meeting  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the last meeting of the Transport Committee 
held on 13 December 2018, be approved as a correct record. 
 
 

77. Developing a Mayoral Transport Plan  
 
The Committee considered a report from Huw Jenkins in relation to seeking 
the endorsement of the Transport Committee for the approach set out for the 
development of a clear, concise and updated transport policy statement in 
the form of a non-statutory Mayoral Transport Plan. 
 
Members enquired about the detail of the Mayoral Transport Plan and the 
lack of details about the Local Industrial Strategy. 
 
Huw Jenkins informed the Committee that the details would be submitted to 
the meeting being held in April 2019 subject to the local elections and 
Purdah. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Transport Committee 
 
 
 

Councillor Susan Murphy requested that recommendation 2.1(c) in the report 
be amended to include that the Chair of the Transport Committee provided 
regular updates to the Transport Committee.  
 
The Committee agreed with the amendment to recommendation 2.1(c) in the 
report. 
 
The Chair commented that it was a step in the right direction to develop the 
Mayoral Transport Plan which was similar to London and that the progress 
was being done in a practical way. 
 
RESOLVED that the Transport Committee:  
 

a) endorses the approach set out in the report for the development of a 
non-statutory Mayoral Transport Plan to clearly articulate the City 
Region’s vision and plans for transport; 
 

b) endorses the proposed timescales for its development with a view to 
the Transport Committee considering the draft document on 4 April 
2019 ahead of its proposed adoption by the Liverpool City Region 
Combined Authority on 12 April 2019 subject to the local elections and 
Purdah; and 
 

c) notes that the Chair of the Transport Committee and Metro Mayor 
would receive regular briefings on the development and contents of 
the Mayoral Transport Plan and that the Chair of the Transport 
Committee would provide regular updates to the Transport Committee. 
 
 

78. Merseyside Road Safety Partnership and Liverpool City Region Road 
Safety Strategy 2017-20  
 
The Committee considered a report from Sean Traynor (Head of Highways 
and Transportation, Knowsley MBC) and Rebecca Power (Merseyside 
Police) relating to an update to members on the progress made by the 
Merseyside Road Safety Partnership pursuant to casualty reduction in 
accordance with the vision set out in the Liverpool City Region Road Safety 
Strategy 2017-2020. 
 
Members enquired about the smart pedestrian crossing designs and being 
able to see the “crossing lights” while crossing and the speed of the light 
change. 
 
Sean Traynor informed the Committee that new traffic sign regulations were 
introduced in 2016 and there is no obligation to do things in a particular way. 
However, gold standard crossings are being adopted across the region. 
 
Councillor John Stockton enquired about why Halton BC was being excluded 
from Road Safety Partnership meetings? 
 

Page 2



 
Transport Committee 

 
 

Sean Traynor informed the Committee that it was previously based upon the 
financial contributions between Cheshire and Merseyside, however, the 
issues have since been resolved and Halton BC are now invited to attend the 
Road Safety Partnership meetings. 
 
Members enquired about reporting structures for cyclists relating to potholes 
on the roads and taxi drivers being in the media for drug use and suggested 
that the drug use could also be medication being used to stay awake and 
work longer hours. 
 
Sean Traynor informed the Committee that the new website was recently 
launched and could facilitate any reports relating to near misses and potholes 
for both drivers and cyclists. He also stated that in relation to the taxi drivers, 
that although the figures are shocking relating to drug use, it is not prescribed 
medication. Collisions involving taxis have found that drivers were resorting 
to recreational drug use to extend working days and hours. He informed the 
Committee that initiatives were being looked at with licensing authorities and 
the police to do testing when issuing and renewing licences. 
 
Members enquired if there was any information available about partnership 
working with schools and Local Authorities relating to road safety etc. 
 
Sean Traynor informed the Committee that a strategy had been developed at 
Knowsley MBC and this would be shared with the Committee in due course. 
 
Members commented about the national legislation relating to road safety 
and that there had been major breakthroughs to have legislation and 
enforcement relating to mobiles phones, seatbelts and drink-driving, 
however, more needed to be done to lobby the Government about helmets 
for cyclists and “close passing” when cycling. 
 
Sean Traynor informed the Committee that the Road Safety Partnership was 
looking at endorsing a strategy and supporting national initiatives related to 
helmets and “close passing”. 
 
The Chair stated that some examples should be taken from specific US 
States that had “close passing” and wearing of helmet laws and that some 
consideration should be given to creating local by-laws and lobbying 
Government for national legislation. He also commented that in relation to 
taxi drivers and drug use that there is a small minority doing this illegal 
practice and that a stronger approach was needed to randomly test bus, train 
and taxi drivers. 
 
Sean Traynor informed the Committee that steps were being explored with 
local licensing authorities, but it needed to be a more City Region approach.  
 
The Chair thanked Sean Traynor and Rebecca Power for the detailed report 
and for their attendance. 
 
RESOLVED that the Transport Committee notes the contents of the report 
and the Action Plan Updates in Appendix 1. 

Page 3



Transport Committee 
 
 
 

79. Liverpool City Region Smart Ticketing Programme Update  
 
The Committee considered a report from Paul Hart that provided an update 
to members on the current development of the Liverpool City Region Smart 
Ticketing Platform including recent progress and future developments. 
 
Members commented about the Apprentice Ticket and the efforts of the 
Metro Mayor to reduce the barriers for young people to travel and work in the 
City Region and enquired if there were any data about the “take up” and how 
was it being advertised and whether consideration was being given to pre-
loaded Walrus cards to make it easier for customers to travel across multi-
modes. 
 
Paul Hart informed the Committee that the “take up” had been slow to date 
mainly due to the launch being in the middle of the apprentice year. However, 
once the system is embedded, then there will be a bit more opportunity to 
advertise and would provide the Committee with an update at a future 
meeting. He also stated that various opportunities were being looked at to 
promote travel across the City Region and make it easier for customers to 
move across the region. Discussions were being held with organisations 
about costs and impact. 
 
Councillor Patrick McKinley commented that in order for Apprenticeships to 
be aware of the reduction in travel costs and the schemes available for travel 
across the City Region it would be best to include the information in the 
apprentice’s induction programme and to inform all providers of the schemes 
and reduced travel costs. 
 
RESOLVED that the Transport Committee noted the contents of the report. 
 
 

80. Williams Rail Review  
 
The Committee considered a report from Tom Carbery (Rail Development 
Advisor) that described the “Williams Rail Review” and advised that proposed 
responses to it were being collated and also sought delegated authority to 
approve the final response to the “Call for Evidence” on behalf of the 
Combined Authority. 
 
The Chair commented that the timescales for the review were unreasonable 
and was proving difficult for the officers to collate the evidence and respond 
by 18th January 2019, but it seemed as though the Government had their 
minds made up regarding the rail review. 
 
Members commented that it is an amazing vision for a world class railway, 
but the Government have appointed a British Airways former Chair who 
knows nothing about the railway. Members thanked the Officers for bringing it 
to the attention of the Committee, despite the views of the Government and 
despite Northern Rail hiking the prices up despite the poor performance. 
 

Page 4



 
Transport Committee 

 
 

The following amendment was circulated to the Committee and proposed by 
Councillor Gordon Friel and seconded by Councillor Liam Robinson, to insert 
at the end of recommendations (a) and (b): - 
 

c) Recognise that public ownership and operation is a model shown to 
work should be implemented across the UK Rail Network. 
 

d) That the ROSCO (Rolling Stock Leasing Company) model is 
significantly more costly and a publicly owned system, similar to the 
publicly owned model being used to procure the new Merseyrail 
Rolling Stock, should be introduced across the UK Rail Network. 

 
In accordance to Standing Order 14.4, Councillor Susan Murphy proposed a 
recorded vote, seconded by Councillor Gordon Friel. 
 
Councillor Christopher Rowe commented that the amendment was 
interesting, but lacked detail and understanding of the financial issues being 
discussed and that he did not have enough information to make an informed 
decision and to vote for the proposed amendment. 
 
Members commented that they were happy to support the proposed 
amendment and that information and feedback from local residents was 
enough to make an informed decision and support the amendment. 
 
A vote was taken on the Amendment, when there appeared: - 
 
FOR THE AMENDMENT AGAINST THE 

AMENDMENT 
ABSTENTIONS 

Councillor Liam Robinson Councillor Paul Hayes Councillor John Dodd 
Councillor Gordon Friel  Councillor Geoff Pearl 
Councillor Anthony Carr  Councillor Christopher 

Rowe 
Councillor Steve Foulkes  Councillor Frances Wynn 
Councillor Harry Howard   

Councillor Dot Johnson   

Councillor Anthony Lavelle   

Councillor Patrick McKinley   

Councillor Margi O’Mara 
OBE 

  

Councillor Ged Philbin   

Councillor John Stockton   

Councillor Susan Murphy   

Councillor Helen Thompson   

Councillor Jerry Williams   

 

For the Amendment – 14 

Against the Amendment – 1 

  

Page 5



Transport Committee 
 
 
 

Abstentions - 4 

The Amendment was approved. 

A vote was then taken on the following Substantive recommendation and it 
was approved by a majority: - 
 
RESOLVED that the Transport Committee: 
 

a) notes the contents of the report;  
 

b) delegate authority to submit the final City Region consultation 
response to the Director of Integrated Transport and the Director of 
Policy and Strategic Commissioning, in consultation with the Chair and 
Vice Chair of the Transport Committee; 
 

c) recognise that public ownership and operation is a model shown to 
work should be implemented across the UK Rail Network; and 
 

d) notes that the ROSCO (Rolling Stock Leasing Company) model is 
significantly more costly and a publicly owned system, similar to the 
publicly owned model being used to procure the new Merseyrail 
Rolling Stock, should be introduced across the UK Rail Network. 

 
The Chair informed the Committee that once the full response was collated 
and agreed by the Chair and Vice Chair that it would be circulated to the 
Committee. 
 
 

81. Public Question Time  
 
The Committee received two public questions from Mr Andrew Wennell who 
was in attendance and was provided an opportunity to ask his questions to 
the Committee as follows: - 
 
Question 1 
Most people start their journey by bus but are unable to purchase Saveaways 
on the bus or online at home. So need to go to a local shop or the train 
station which could also require a bus journey. Is this going to be possible to 
make it easier for the public? 
 
The Chair thanked Me Wennell for submitting his question and for attending 
the meeting and informed him that a formal response would be provided 
within 10 working days. 
 
Question 2 
What is going to be the end result of this? It has been going on for months. 
Always on a Saturday, well if they want to cause maximum disruption do it 
during the week. What’s the news in relation to this? 
 

Page 6



 
Transport Committee 

 
 

The Chair thanked Me Wennell for submitting his question and for attending 
the meeting and informed him that a formal response would be provided 
within 10 working days. 
 
 

82. Petitions and Statements  
 
No petitions or statements were submitted for this meeting. 
 
 

83. Any Other Urgent Business Approved by the Chair  
 
There was no other urgent business. 
 

 
 
 
 

______________________ 
                                                                                CHAIR 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY 
 
 
To:      The Chair and Members of the Transport Committee 
  
Meeting:     31 January 2019 
 
Authority/Authorities Affected:  All Areas 
 
EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL ITEM: No 
 
 

REPORT OF THE LEAD OFFICER: TRANSPORT  
 

MERSEY TUNNEL TOLLS 2019/20 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The Liverpool City Region Combined Authority ("the LCRA") is responsible for 

determining the level of tolls ("the tolls") payable for use of the Mersey Tunnels ("the 
Tunnels"). 

 
1.2 This report is intended to assist the LCRCA by allowing the following issues to be 

explained and discussed by the Transport Committee and for a recommendation 
made to the LCRCA on the level of tolls.  This report will: 

 
 (a) outline the legal procedure for revising the level of the tolls; 
 
 (b) summarise how the current level of tolls was arrived at; and 
 
 (c) make proposals for the level of tolls payable in 2019/20. 
 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 Balancing the different factors associated with setting the Mersey Tunnel tolls, the 

Transport Committee is recommended to: 
 

(a) note the contents of this report; 
 

 (b) note the level of “authorised tolls” for the Mersey Tunnels as determined by 
the County of Merseyside Act 1980 (as amended by the Tunnels Act 2004), 
with details on calculation methods explained in section 3 of this report;  

 
(c) recommend that the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority implement a 

schedule of tolls contained in Table 1 below with effect from Monday 1 April 
2019:- 

 
  

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 

Vehicle 
Class 

Authorised 
Toll 
(November 
RPI) 

2019/20 
Cash Toll  

2019/20 Fast 
Tag Toll – 

LCR 
Resident* 

2019/20 Fast 
Tag Toll – 
Non LCR 
Resident 

1 £2.00 £1.80 £1.00 £1.80 

2 £4.10 £3.60 £2.40 £2.40 

3 £6.10 £5.40 £3.60 £3.60 

4 £8.20 £7.20 £4.80 £4.80 

 *Liverpool City Region (LCR) resident defined as living within the electoral 
boundaries of Halton, Knowsley, Liverpool, St Helens, Sefton and Wirral. 

 
 (d) recommend that the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority continue to 

offer the discounts set out in paragraph 3.19 of this report for 2019/20.  
 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Kingsway (Wallasey) and Queensway (Birkenhead) tunnels are an essential 

part of the Liverpool City Region’s strategic highway network with over 26 million 
vehicles travelling through them each year.  

 
3.2 The tunnels were built as a joint venture by the local authorities and, as such, their 

upkeep and maintenance remains outside of the national highway network and so is 
not funded through road tax or general taxation.  

 
3.3 The County of Merseyside Act 1980 ("the 1980 Act"), as amended by the 

Mersey Tunnels Act 2004 ("the 2004 Act"), sets out the procedure for revising the 
tolls.  Under Section 91(7) of the 1980 Act, the LCRCA must make an Order in 
February of each year ("a Section 91 Order") fixing the amount of tolls payable by 
each class of vehicle from the following April.  There are four prescribed classes of 
vehicles, each with subcategories, as follows: 

 

Class Subcategories 

1. (a) Motor cycle with side car and 3 wheeled vehicle. 

 (b) Motor car and goods vehicle up to 3.5 tonnes gross weight. 

 (c) Passenger vehicle other than a motor car with seating 
capacity for under 9 persons. 

2. (a) Motor car and goods vehicle up to 3.5 tonnes gross weight, 
with trailer. 

 (b) Goods vehicle over 3.5 tonnes gross weight, with two axles. 

 (c) Passenger vehicle with seating capacity for 9 or more 
persons, with two axles. 

3. (a) Goods vehicle over 3.5 tonnes gross weight, with three axles. 

 (b) Passenger vehicle with seating capacity for 9 or more 
persons, with three axles. 

4. (a) Goods vehicle over 3.5 tonnes gross weight, with 4 or more 
axles. 

 

Page 10



 
3.4 The overriding presumption in the Act (as amended) is that tolls rise in line with 

inflation, so preserving their value in real terms.  The increase in the tolls authorised 
by the Act (the "authorised tolls") is calculated by: 

 
(a) taking the "base" toll amounts set out in Section 91(6) of the Act for each 

class; 
 
(b) increasing them by the same percentage increase as the rise in the Retail 

Prices Index ("RPI") from November 1999 ("the base month") to the 
November immediately preceding the making of the Section 91 Order; and 
then 

 
(c) rounding the new value up or down to the nearest ten pence. 

 
3.5 Section 92C of the 1980 Act also gives the LCRCA discretion to reduce the amount 

of actual tolls payable by any particular class of traffic to less than the authorised 
toll where it is deemed necessary or appropriate to do so having regard to matters 
of an economic or social nature within the City Region. 
 

3.6 When making decisions on the amount of tolls to be levied, it is very important that 
the LCRCA must consider the purpose of the legislation with respect to the level of 
toll. In particular: 

 
(a) the relative costs of using the Mersey Tunnels must keep pace with other 

transport alternatives; and 
 
(b) it ensures that sufficient funds are available to cover the costs of operating 

and maintaining the Mersey Tunnels, including the repayment of the historic 
debt relating to the construction and operation of the Mersey Tunnels. 

 
3.7 Following the discharge of these financial responsibilities, the Tunnels Act allows 

the City Region to generate a surplus of income over immediate expenditure.  The 
purpose of this is to provide sufficient resources for long term asset management of 
the tunnels, including capital financing requirements related to major schemes to 
ensure business continuity and safe operation. 
 

3.8 In addition, the Tunnels Act allows the City Region to benefit from tunnel revenue 
by making any surpluses not identified for the tunnels themselves to be made 
available to finance other transport infrastructure priorities across the City Region. 
 

Authorised Tolls – 2019/20 
 
3.9 In determining a schedule for tolls in any given year, the legislation is clear that the 

starting point must be the authorised toll.  The level of the authorised toll is 
calculated each December based on the retail price index for the previous 
November. 

 
3.10 The RPI in November 2018 dictates the following levels of “authorised tolls” for the 

Mersey Tunnels from 1 April 2019.  For the benefit of Members, the table below 
shows the difference from the previous year also: 

 

Page 11



 

Vehicle 
Class 

1 April 2018 
Authorised Toll (RPI 

Linked Rates) 

1 April 2019 (RPI 
Linked Rates) 

1 £2.00 £2.00 

2 £4.00 £4.10 

3 £6.00 £6.10 

4 £7.90 £8.20 

 
3.11 The following table shows the tolls payable over the past six years and compares 

the amount of toll that could have been levied (ie the “authorised toll”, being that 
reflecting the rise in inflation) against the “actual” tolls, as well as the additional 
discount for Fast Tag users: 

 
Class Toll Apr 

‘13 
Apr 
‘14 

Apr 
‘15 

Apr 
‘16 

Apr 
‘17 

Apr 
‘18 

1 Authorised £1.70 £1.80 £1.80 £1.90 £1.90 £2.00 

Actual Cash £1.50 £1.60 £1.70 £1.70 £1.70 £1.80 

Fast Tag £1.30 £1.30 £1.40 £1.40 £1.20 £1.20 

2 Authorised £3.40 £3.50 £3.60 £3.70 £3.70 £4.00 

Actual Cash £3.00 £3.20 £3.40 £3.40 £3.40 £3.60 

Fast Tag £2.60 £2.60 £2.80 £2.80 £2.40 £2.40 

3 Authorised £5.20 £5.30 £5.40 £5.60 £5.60 £6.00 

Actual Cash £4.50 £4.80 £5.10 £5.10 £5.10 £5.40 

Fast Tag £3.90 £3.90 £4.20 £4.20 £3.60 £3.60 

4 Authorised £6.90 £7.10 £7.30 £7.40 £7.50 £7.90 

Actual Cash £6.00 £6.40 £6.80 £6.80 £6.80 £7.20 

Fast Tag £5.20 £5.20 £5.60 £5.60 £4.80 £4.80 

 
3.12 The table shows that the level of the cash toll has fallen behind the authorised toll 

over a number of years and the discount aimed at Fast Tag, used in the main by 
local users, has significantly increased.  This is further demonstrated this year when 
inflation levels have increased, triggering a further increase in the authorised toll. 
 

Local Economic Factors 
 

3.13 In determining toll levels for 2019/20, Members should consider local economic 
indicators and in particular, the relative cost of a tolled river crossing in relation to 
other river crossing options and the need for these to be kept broadly consistent 
over time. 

 
3.14 The table below is a range of comparative costs for rail bus and ferry commuter 

fares, as well as tunnel tolls since 2009: 
 
  

Page 12



Year Rail Bus Ferry 
Commuter 

Tunnel 
Toll 

2009/10 £2.37 £1.92 £1.50 £1.40 

2010/11 £2.37 £1.91 £1.55 £1.40 

2011/12 £2.49 £2.07 £1.60 £1.50 

2012/13 £2.63 £2.27 £2.10 £1.50 

2013/14 £2.70 £2.35 £2.20 £1.60 

2014/15 £3.00 £2.30 £2.30 £1.70 

2015/16 £2.84 £2.24 £2.50 £1.70 

2016/17 £2.89 £2.16 £2.60 £1.70 

2017/18 £2.96 £2.26 £2.70 £1.70 

2018/19   £2.80 £1.80 

Total % 
increase 

 
24.9% 

 
17.7% 

 
86% 

 
28.5% 

 
3.12 It should be noted that the bus and rail fares quoted above are based on average, 

not actual fares.  The rail and bus fare data for 2018/19 is only available at financial 
year end. 
 

3.13 It should also be noted that the Tunnel Toll level detailed is the full actual class 1 
cash toll, not the discounted Fast Tag toll, peak or off peak. 
 

3.14 The fares quoted for Ferry, Bus and Rail are charged per person in all cases.  The 
Tunnel toll charge is the cost per vehicle, regardless of the number of occupants.  
The average vehicle occupancy using the Mersey Tunnels, based on survey data, 
is 1.49 persons per vehicle. 
 

3.15 Finally, it should be noted that the cost of Tunnel tolls are just one element of costs 
associated with use of a vehicle.  Other costs such as fuel, insurance and car 
parking also influence a person’s choice to travel via car and are rising in line or 
above inflation. 
 

Current Tunnel Usage Data 
 

3.16 A key indicator for Members to consider when determining toll levels is the existing 
usage data for the Mersey Tunnels.  Attached as Appendix A is a line graph 
showing total toll paying vehicles through the Tunnels since January 2000.  This 
data tracks actual usage and average trends, taking out specific factors such as 
large events and other seasonal impacts.  This data helps to demonstrate that 
average usage of the Mersey Tunnels has started to reduce over the last 12-month 
period. 
 

3.17 Another key factor for members to consider is the % of customers who use either 
cash or Fast Tag as payment methods through the Tunnel.  The table below sets 
out the % of Cash and Fast Tag customers across all classes as at November 
2018: - 

  

Page 13



Vehicle Class % Cash/ Card 
Payment 

% Fast Tag 
Payment 

Class 1 42% 58% 

Class 2 16% 84% 

Class 3 21% 79% 

Class 4 12% 88% 

All Classes 41% 59% 

 
3.18 This should be considered as key information as the Fast Tag service is available to 

all customers and this data indicates that approximately 40% of current users pay 
by cash or card and by adopting Fast Tag as a mode of payment additional 
discounts remain available to those users.  The Fast Tag particularly benefits local 
users, with high concentrations of use from users living in the Liverpool City Region 
(see Appendix B). 

 
Additional Discounts 
 
3.19 As part of the on-going Tunnel tolls review process, a number of discounts are 

offered as part of the Tunnel tolls setting process for 2019/20. These are: - 
 

(a) All emergency service liveried vehicles to be allowed free travel through the 
Mersey Tunnels; 

 
(b) Travel through the Mersey Tunnels between 10pm on 24 December and 

6.00am on 26 December each year be allowed free in recognition that public 
transport services are not available during these times. 

 
(c) A reduced Fast Tag charge for Fast Tag account holders who are resident 

within the Liverpool City Region.  This discount will be available for class 1 
vehicles and applicable to just private Fast Tag accounts, not business 
users. 

 
3.20 On this basis, the current difference between peak and off peak charges will be 

removed – in effect meaning Fast Tag charges for a class 1 vehicle for a resident 
within the Liverpool City Region will be £1.00 at all times of the day, 7 days a week. 

 
3.21 It is proposed that these discounts/ concessions remain in place during 2019/20. 
 
 
4. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 Financial 
 
 4.1.1 The measures outlined above have been accommodated in the budget 

setting process for 2019/20. It is expected that the introduction of a £1 Fast 
tag charge will be cost neutral. Annually, Mersey Tunnels sees a migration of 
customers paying by cash to Fast Tag and for prudent budget planning 
purposes we have assumed a 5% migration from cash to Tag. As a result, 
toll revenue for 2019/20 is expected to reduce by £1.1m as a result of 
increased Fast Tag usage.  It must be stressed that this figure will vary 
dependent upon the level of use.   

  

Page 14



4.2 Human Resources 
 
  There are no specific HR related issues associated with this report. 
 
4.3 Physical Assets 

 
There are no specific Asset related issues associated with this report. 

 
4.4 Information Technology 
 

Any change to the toll levels will require modification of the electronic toll system.  
 

 
5.  RISKS AND MITIGATION 
 
 The risks associated with this report have been considered and mitigated through 

effective budget planning.   
 
 
6.  EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 An Equality Impact Assessment has been completed in respect of this 

recommendation, and it has been identified that the decision creates a negative 
impact for the protected characteristics in the socio economic category.  This impact 
has been mitigated through the various discounts offered as part of the 
Mersey Tunnels Tolls, including concession services, a reduction on the full 
authorised toll levels and a further reduction for Fast Tag, our most regular, users. 

 
 
7.  COMMUNICATION ISSUES 
 
 The detailed proposals within this report will be accompanied by stakeholder and 

media communications activity to ensure key points are summarised. 
 
 
8.  CONCLUSION 
 
 In considering a suitable recommendation for the LCRCA, Members must balance a 

range of relevant information associated with the usage and pricing of the Mersey 
Tunnels, along with the details of the 2004 Act.  This report sets out the details 
around each of these issues and recommends to Members the most appropriate toll 
levels for 2019/20. 

 
FRANK ROGERS  

Lead Officer: Transport 
 

  

Page 15



Contact Officer(s): 
 
Gary Evans, Merseytravel, 0151 330 4502 
Liz Storey, Corporate Communications Manager 0151 330 1430 
 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix A – Mersey Tunnels Fast Tag Usage Areas 
Appendix B – Map of Fast Tag account areas 
 
Background Documents:  
 
None 
 
 

Page 16



Appendix A 
 

 
 
 

1800

1900

2000

2100

2200

2300

2400

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

M
o

n
th

ly
 T

o
ta

ls
 

T
h

o
u

s
a
n

d
s

 

Mersey Tunnels Monthly Traffic Trends. January 2000 to November 2018 Total Toll Paying Vehicles 

Monthly
Total
Moving
Average

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



0 20.00

kilometres

Fast Tag Ownership 2017
by LSOA

400+
300 to 400

150 to 300
50 to 150

10 to 50
1 to 10

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of
the controller of H.M.S.O. (c) Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright
and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Merseytravel (100013386). 2014.

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY 
 
 
To:      The Chair and Members of the Transport Committee 
  
Meeting:     31 January 2019 
 
Authorities Affected:    All 
 
EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL ITEM: No 
 
 

REPORT OF THE TREASURER  
 

BUDGET SETTING REPORT 2019/20 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 Members will be aware the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority (LCRCA) has 

a statutory duty to agree a Levy for 2019/20 before 14 February 2019.  To assist the 
LCRCA in its deliberations, the Transport Committee will consider Merseytravel’s 
financial situation and recommend budget options. 

 
1.2 This report details the draft revenue budget and capital programme for Merseytravel 

for 2019/20.   
 
1.3 The budget report also provides details of the price/ fare increases proposed for 

2019/20 to which approval is sought. 
 
1.4 To allow Members to determines the revenue grants payable to Merseytravel in 

respect of general operations and Mersey Tunnels for 2019/20 and to recommend 
these to the LCRCA. 
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
2.1  It is recommended that the Transport Committee:- 

 

a) request LCRCA to approve 2019/20 operating grants for both public transport 

and Mersey Tunnels operating activities as detailed in section 4 of this report; 

 

b) consider and approve the fare/ price increases included within this report and, 

subject to approval, seek that the financial implications of these fare increases 

are included within the draft budget for 2019/20; and 

 

c) approve the capital programme as detailed in section 4. 

 
 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



3. BACKGROUND  
 
3.1 The Transport Committee approved the budget for 2018/19 at its meeting on 1 

February 2018.  This budget was subsequently approved by the LCRCA at its 
meeting on 2 February 2018 and the Merseytravel levy was set at £95.4m.  The 
Merseytravel operating grant was agreed at £90.2m and the Mersey Tunnels 
operating grant at £27.7m. 

 
3.2 The approved budget for 2018/19 has been used as the starting point from which to 

develop the 2019/20 estimates. No allowance has been made for growth within the 
budget. 

 
3.3 In accordance with the medium term financial strategy approved by Merseytravel at 

its meeting on 28 February 2018, the base budget was cash limited and therefore 
Merseytravel services are expected to absorb the impact of general inflation and 
contractual uplifts within their budget. The only exceptions from this from this have 
been to uplift the budgets for the impact of the pay award and to factor in the impact 
of the reduction in Special Rail Grant from Government. . 

 
3.4 Whilst Merseytravel is funded predominantly through grant there are a number of 

areas in which services have the ability to generate income.  As part of the budget 
setting process, services with the ability to generate fees and charges review the 
levels at which these should be set for the forthcoming year. 

 
 
4. MERSEYTRAVEL REVENUE BUDGETS 2019/20 
 

MERSEY TUNNELS 
 
4.1 Whilst the Mersey Tunnels are assets of the Combined Authority, day to day 

operation of the tunnels has been formally delegated to Merseytravel.  Gross 
income from the tunnels for 2019/20 is forecast to be £40.7m, subject to the LCRCA 
approving the recommendation made by the Transport Committee on 1 February 
2018 in respect of the schedule of tolls applicable in 2019/20. 

 
4.2 From this revenue, an operating grant will be made to Merseytravel to fund the day 

to day operation of the tunnels alongside necessary capital investment.  The 
estimated grant for the operation of the Mersey Tunnels for 2019/20 is £28.47m. 

 
4.3 As the Tunnels are the assets of the LCRCA, any income generated over that 

required to meet the operational costs of the Tunnels is passed back to the LCRCA.  
Tunnels revenues are also used by the LCRCA to fund its other transport priorities, 
such as the Mersey Ferries in accordance with the County of Merseyside Act 1980 
(the 1980 Act) as amended by the Mersey Tunnels Act 2004.   

 
4.4 Although Merseytravel has delegated authority for the day to day operation of the 

Tunnels, it is not a Merseytravel service and consequently responsibility for 
determining the level of tolls payable for the use of Mersey Tunnels rests with 
LCRCA.  Consequently this report does not cover the setting of tolls for 2019/20 as 
this is subject to a separate report to the LCRCA. 

 
 

Page 22



 MERSEYTRAVEL TRANSPORT ACTIVITIES 
 
4.5 The table below details the proposed revenue budget for Merseytravel for 2019/20 

and the projected outturn for 2018/19.  A detailed breakdown of the revenue budget 
is included at Appendix A. 

 
Table 1 Merseytravel Summary Budget 2019/20 
 

  Projected 
Outturn 
2018/19 

Forward 
Estimate 
2019/20 

£'000 £'000 

Corporate Management & Democratic 
Representation 

785 779 

Transport Services 130,835 133,753 

Total Expenditure 131,620 134,532 

    

Funded by   

Merseytravel Operating Grant (92,020) (93,916) 

Mersey Tunnels Operating Grant (28,467) (23,734) 

Use of Reserves - Rolling Stock (8,979) (12,401) 

Use of Reserves –Merseytravel (2,154) (4,481) 

Total Income (131,620) (134,532) 

     

Net Requirement 0 0 

 
4.6 The proposed Transport levy for 2019/20 is £95.4m, effectively a static levy position 

when compared to 2018/19.  Whilst the levy remains static, Merseytravel face a 
number of significant financial challenges primarily through the reductions in the 
Special Rail Grant from Government.  Allied to this there is a significant level of 
financial uncertainty around the cost of concessionary travel. For this reason it is 
proposed that the grant made to Merseytravel is increased to £93.9m.   

 
4.7 Whilst increasing the grant to Merseytravel reduces some of the financial pressures 

and reduces the absolute budget gap, there remains an absolute need for savings 
during 2019/20 and beyond.  Moreover by passing through more of the Levy to 
Merseytravel this creates additional transport cost pressures on the Combined 
Authority.  

 
4.8 The reduction in Tunnels Operating grants reflects a change in accounting 

treatment for the debt servicing element of Tunnels expenditure. Previously this was 
budgeted for within Merseytravel but accounted for at year end within the Combined 
Authority. A decision has been taken to retain the costs and funding for all debt 
servicing costs at the Combined Authority level so that it is only the direct operating 
costs of Mersey Tunnels that are reflected within the Merseytravel budget. 

 
4.9 The table below details the distribution of the Levy over the constituent districts. 

Note that any changes in distribution between 2018/19 and 2020/21 are solely as a 
result of population changes.  Note also that arrangements in respect of Halton 

Page 23



recognise that Halton is responsible for delivering transport services within its own 
boundaries and therefore sits outside of the main transport levy mechanism. 

 
 Table 2 Distribution of Merseytravel Levy 
 

 2018/19 
£’000 

2019/20 
£’000 

Knowlsey 10,032 10,006 

Liverpool 32,869 33,095 

Sefton 18,605 18,490 

St Helens 12,107 12,073 

Wirral 21,786 21,736 

Total 95,400 95,400 

 
4.10 Between 2013/14 and 2017/18, the Merseytravel Levy reduced by £31.6m, an 

overall reduction that exceeded the corresponding reduction in Revenue Support 
Grant over the same period.  In real terms the Levy has remained flat since.  
Reducing the Merseytravel Transport Levy has had significant benefits to 
constituent districts, allowing a greater share of scarce resources to be made 
available to fund other services.  The reduction is the equivalent of £100 per Band D 
Council Tax on average across the constituent districts. 

 
4.11 The reduction in Levy has been managed by Merseytravel through a combination of 

efficiencies, alternative funding options and use of reserves, however non 
earmarked reserves have now reached a position whereby it is not prudent to seek 
recourse to these to fund the ongoing revenue budget of the organisation.  

 
4.12 As a result of this, Merseytravel will operate on a low level of operational balances 

in 2019/20, with significant commitments against some of its earmarked reserves.  
This position will mean Merseytravel has a limited capacity to absorb any new cost 
pressures or fund new activity. 

 
4.13 In light of the above, whilst Merseytravel’s financial strategy continues to be to 

reduce its costs of operation while protecting front line services wherever possible, 
the quantum of the funding challenges faced over the next three years and beyond 
are such that there will be a need for a more fundamental review of what services 
are provided and the level to which services can be sustained.   

 
4.14 The grant approved for Merseytravel for 2018/19 was £92m.  Based on current 

projections it is not proposed that this grant is altered in the year. 
 
 
5.0 MERSEYTRAVEL CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
 
5.1. The revised 2018/19 and draft 2019/20 capital programme are summarised below.  

The total revised capital programme for 2018/19 is £171.18m and for 2019/20 is 
£129.30m including tunnels.  A detailed breakdown of the capital programme is 
included at Appendix B. 

Page 24



       Table 3 Merseytravel Summary Capital Programme 
 
 

Service Area 2018/2019  
£’m 

 

2019/2020 
£’m 

Bus 1.55 1.99 

Rail 13.56 5.90 

Rolling Stock 143.27 110.00 

Ferries 0.40 0.55 

Tunnels 3.92 8.77 

Hubs - 0.20 

IT 0.46 0.47 

Smart Ticketing - 1.20 

Corporate Strategy/Policy 7.55 - 

Corporate Services 0.47 0.22 

Total  171.18 129.30 

 
5.1.2 Direct grant funding for the Merseytravel capital programme has reduced 

significantly over a number of years and there is currently a reliance on applying 
contributions from reserve to support the programme.  To ensure that adequate 
reserves are maintained by Merseytravel the programme for 2019/20 has been 
reduced in scale when compared to previous years. 

 
 
6. FEES AND CHARGES 
 

MERSEY FERRIES 
 
6.1 The 2018/19 allowed budget for Mersey Ferries (excluding The Beatles Story) 

showed a deficit of £0.25m excluding recharges.  As Mersey Ferries is a company 
limited by guarantee, this means that a grant is required from Merseytravel to allow 
the company to break even.  This grant is met through the Merseytravel operational 
grant, which in turn is funded by the Levy. 

 
6.2 Mersey Ferries prices were referred to in the Mersey Ferries Long Term Strategy, 

endorsed by Merseytravel Committee in January 2016, indicating that prices should 
increase annually by RPI plus 1%.  However in setting prices for what is primarily a 
leisure attraction, it does not present a clear pricing arrangement unless increased 
in multiples of 50p or more.  For 2019/20 the RPI plus 1% increase does trigger an 
increase so it is proposed that prices are increased accordingly for 2019/20.  

 
6.3 In the commuter market tickets, prices are proposed to be increased from the 

2018/19 level.  Commuter child fares are 50% of the adult fare. 
 
6.4 A full schedule of Mersey Ferries fares are attached at Appendix C.  These changes 

result in additional income of £212k for 2019/20. 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 25



SUPPORTED BUS SERVICES FARES 
 
6.5 Currently Merseytravel operates its own fares policy on the supported bus service 

network.  The adult single cash fare is £2.00 whereas the average commercial fare 
is circa £2.34.  Similarly Merseytravel charges £1.00 for a single child fare (age 5-
18) whereas commercial fares are usually half of the adult price. 

 
6.6 Merseytravel has consistently expressed a desire to maintain fares at an affordable 

level for passengers.  At the same time commercial operators have applied higher 
than inflationary increases on their services.  This has led to the current differential 
between commercial and supported bus fares.  To address this fares have been 
subject to annual increase over the last couple of years.  

 
6.7 For 2019/20 it is proposed to increase adult fares by 10p to £2.10 for a single cash 

fare and to freeze child fares at £1.00. Average commercial fares are around £2.34 
which is still higher than the proposed supported bus fare. 

 
 
 BUS STATION DEPARTURE CHARGES 
 
6.8 Bus station departure charges relate to commercial bus operators’ use of 

Merseytravel bus station facilities.  The current bus station agreements allow for 
charges to be increased by a maximum of RPI plus 2%.  However, as there is to be 
a fundamental review of departure charges later this year, it is not proposed to 
apply the increase allowed under the contract for the financial year 2019/20 and, as 
such, base charges will remain unchanged from 2018/19.  The table below details 
the charges to be applied across all staffed and unstaffed locations. 

 
 Table 4 Bus Station Departure Charges 
 

 2019/20 
Rate 

£ 

Period Applicable 

Staffed bus station standard rate 0.457 Per departure 

Staffed bus station green rate 0.452 Per departure 

Unstaffed bus station standard rate 0.166 Per departure 

Unstaffed bus station green rate 0.151 Per departure 

Liverpool One layover charge 1,623 Per month 

Bootle layover charge 400 Per month 
 
 
7. Human Resources 
  

None as a direct result of this report. 
 
8. Physical Assets  

 
This report will provide resources to Merseytravel to undertake its asset 
management function in respect of the Mersey Tunnels and other LCRCA assets. 
 
 

Page 26



9. Information Technology  
 
None as a direct result of this report. 
 

 
10. RISKS AND MITIGATION 
 
 None as a direct result of this report. 
 
 
11. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 Members are reminded that under Public Sector Equality Duty, Merseytravel has a 

duty to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster good 
relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do 
not.  Whilst the level of detail contained within this budget does not lend itself to a 
full appraisal of the operational implications with respect to equality and diversity, it 
is possible that there could be resultant implications for people who share a 
protected characteristic, for example older disabled people.  Therefore whilst there 
are no issues with the budget itself, any actions undertaken as part of the 
management of any savings, the equalities consequences will be fully appraised 
and any negative implications for any of the protected characteristics will be 
mitigated, where possible, subject to available resources. 

 
 
12. COMMUNICATION ISSUES 
 

Any fare changes will be communicated to users through appropriate channels 
ahead of their introduction. . 

 
 
13. CONCLUSION 
 
13.1 Revenue spend for the current year is in line to outturn in line with the current 

revised estimates.   
 
13.2 The draft revenue budget for 2019/20 is based on robust estimates and funding 

confirmed to the Merseytravel. 
 
13.3 Revenue estimates incorporate the proposed price increases for ferries.  The 

additional income allows Merseytravel to reduce the level of grant support required 
to support Mersey Ferries. 

 
13.4 Capital programme spend indicates a proposed capital spend of £171.18m and 

£129.3m for 2017/18 and 2019/20 respectively. 
 
13.4 The Director of Resources is able to give his assurances that the estimates 

contained within the draft budget are robust and that adequate reserves exist to 
meet foreseeable events. 

 
 
 

Page 27



JOHN FOGARTY 
Treasurer  

 
 
Contact Officers:- 
Sarah Johnston, Head of Finance Merseytravel (0151 330 1015) 
Joanne Sawyer, Senior Communications Officer, Merseytravel (0151 330 1129) 
 
  

Page 28



Appendix C 
MERSEY FERRIES PRICING PROPOSALS 2018/19 

 

 Current Proposed 

TICKET TYPE 2017/18 2018/19 

COMMUTER   

COMMUTER SINGLE ADULT (AM) 2.70 2.70 

SHUTTLE SINGLE CHILD (AM) 1.30 1.30 

SHUTTLE RETURN ADULT (AM) 3.40 3.50 

SHUTTLE RETURN CHILD (AM) 1.70 1.70 

WEEKLY SAVER 13.50 14.00 

MONTHLY SAVER 57.50 58.50 

3 MONTHLY SAVER 139.00 142.00 

ANNUAL SAVER 490.00 500.00 

RIVER EXPLORER   

ADULT CROSS RIVER 5.50 5.50 

CONCESSION CROSS RIVER 5.00 5.00 

CHILD CROSS RIVER 4.00 4.00 

ADULT FULL CRUISE 10.00 10.00 

CHILD FULL CRUISE 6.50 6.50 

FAMILY FULL CRUISE 27.50 28.00 

CONCESSION FULL CRUISE 8.50 9.00 

WHOLESALER/FIT RATE FULL CRUISE +20 6.50 7.00 

GROUPS RATE FULL CRUISE +20 7.50 8.00 

SPACEPORT   

ADULT SPACEPORT 9.50 9.50 

CHILD (5-15) 6.00 6.00 

FAMILY 24.50 26.00 

CONCESSION 8.00 8.00 

JOINT CRUISE/SPACEPORT ADULT 14.50 15.00 

JOINT CRUISE/SPACEPORT CHILD (5-15) 8.50 9.00 

JOINT CRUISE/SPACEPORT FAMILY* 39.00 41.00 

JOINT CRUISE/SPACEPORT CONCESSION 12.00 12.50 

PRE BOOKED SCHOOLS - SPACEPORT   

CHILD (5-15) SPACEPORT 6.00 6.00 

JOINT CRUISE/SPACEPORT CHILD (5-15) 8.00 8.00 

CHILD WITH ROCKET WORKSHOP 7.00 7.50 

U BOAT STORY   

ADULT 7.50 7.50 

CHILD (5-15) 5.00 5.00 

FAMILY 21.00 21.00 

CONCESSION 6.50 6.50 

MANCHESTER SHIP CNANAL CRUISE   

ADULT/CHILD/OAP 42.00 44.00 

COACH PRICE 35.00 38.00 

MSCC &UBS ADULT 45.00 47.00 

MSCC & UBS COACH PRICE 39.00 40.00 

MSCC GROUP PRICE WITH RETURN TRANSPORT 39.00 41.00 

MSCC/UBSGROUP PRICE WITH RETURN TRANSPORT 42.00 45.00 

SUMMER CRUISE   

ADULT/CHILD/OAP 13.95 14.95 

CHARTERS   

3 HOUR CHARTER HIRE SECOND BOAT 3600.00 3600.00 

SUBSEQUENT HOURLY CHARGE 1000.00 1000.00 

 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Projection 18/19 BUS SERVICES Draft Budget 19/20

(£'000) Expenditure (£'000)

1,761 Employees 1,871

164 Premises 115

53 Transport 56

1,038 Supplies & Services 805

18,287 Third Party Payments 18,778

21,303 Total Expenditure 21,625

Income:

-4,816 Fees and Charges -2,778

-185 Other External Income -165

-1,516 Revenue Grants -1,516

-6,517 Total Income -4,459

14,786 Net Total - Bus 17,166

Projection 18/19 RAIL SERVICES Draft Budget 19/20

(£'000) Expenditure (£'000)

678 Employees 820

321 Premises 333

8 Transport 8

252 Supplies & Services 209

90,497 Third Party Payments 79,923

91,756 Total Expenditure 81,293

Income:

-88,265 Income -78,042

-88,265 Total Income -78,042

3,491 Net Total - Rail 3,251

Projection 18/19 ROLLING STOCK Draft Budget 19/20

(£'000) Expenditure (£'000)

603 Employees 628

11 Premises 0

37 Transport 29

1,771 Supplies & Services 2,725

6,557 Third Party Payments 9,018

8,979 Total Expenditure 12,401

8,979 Net Total - Rolling Stock 12,401

Projection 18/19 CONCESSIONARY TRAVEL Draft Budget 19/20

(£'000) Expenditure (£'000)

0 Employees 0

0 Premises 0

0 Transport 0

0 Supplies & Services 0

74,865 Third Party Payments 74,096

74,865 Total Expenditure 74,096

Income:

-8,249 Prepaid Income: Solo -8,287

-6,667 Prepaid Income: Saveaways -3,829

-6,985 Prepaid Income: Trio -10,016

-21,901 Total Income -22,132

52,964 Net Total - Concessionary Travel 51,964

EXCLUDING RECHARGES

APPENDIX A: MERSEYTRAVEL DETAILED REVENUE BUDGET

Page 31



Projection 18/19 CORPORATE MANAGEMENT Draft Budget 19/20

(£'000) Expenditure (£'000)

707 Employees 673

0 Premises 0

11 Transport 6

279 Supplies & Services 277

997 Total Expenditure 955

-212 LCRCA -176

-212 Total Income -176

785 Net Total - Corporate Management 779

Projection 18/19 CUSTOMER DELIVERY Draft Budget 19/20

(£'000) Expenditure (£'000)

4,134 Employees 4,298

1,903 Premises 2,037

8 Transport 8

923 Supplies & Services 828

203 Fees & Charges (excludes recharges) 203

7,171 Total Expenditure 7,374

-1,908 Income -1,877

-1,908 Total Income -1,877

5,263 Net Total - Customer Delivery 5,497

Projection 18/19 POLICY & LTP DEVELOPMENT Draft Budget 19/20

(£'000) Expenditure (£'000)

1,071 Employees 1,126

6 Premises 6

7 Transport 7

239 Supplies & Services 78

437 Third Party Payments 0

1,760 Total Expenditure 1,217

Income:

-                                     LCRCA -75

-10 Other Fees & Contributions -10

-608 Grant Income 0

-618 Total Income -85

1,142 Net Total - Policy & LTP Development 1,132

Projection 18/19 MERSEY FERRIES Draft Budget 19/20

(£'000) Expenditure (£'000)

2,026 Employees 2,202

974 Premises 985

139 Transport 111

1,082 Vessels 1,045

488 Supplies & Services 345

4,709 Total Expenditure 4,688

Income:

-4,463 Income  -4,435

-4,463 Total Income -4,435

246 Net Total - Mersey Ferries 254

Page 32



Projection 18/19 THE BEATLES STORY Draft Budget 19/20

(£'000) Expenditure (£'000)

1,588 Employees 1,691

1,074 Premises 1,005

12 Transport 21

1,783 Supplies & Services 1,985

520 Other Costs 513

4,977 Total Expenditure 5,215

Income:

-6,256 Income -6,364

-6,256 Total Income -6,364

-1,279 Net Total - The Beatles Story -1,149

Projection 18/19 PEOPLE DEVELOPMENT Draft Budget 19/20

(£'000) Expenditure (£'000)

1,385 Employees 1,340

0 Premises 0

5 Transport 5

137 Supplies & Services 147

1,527 Total Expenditure 1,493

Income:

-107 Grant Income -                                     

-107 Total Income -                                     

1,420 Net Total - People Development 1,493

Projection 18/19 CUSTOMER DEVELOPMENT Draft Budget 19/20

(£'000) Expenditure (£'000)

1,017 Employees 1,219

2 Premises 2

7 Transport 6

683 Supplies & Services 655

477 Third Party Payments 455

2,186 Total Expenditure 2,337

Income:

-40 Other income -35

-384 Grant Income -385

-424 Total Income -420

1,762 Net Total - Customer Development 1,917

Projection 18/19 MERSEY TUNNELS - DIRECT COSTS ONLY Draft Budget 19/20

(£'000) Expenditure (£'000)

4,695 Employees 4,862

3,226 Premises 3,529

161 Transport 170

1,312 Supplies & Services 1,445

11,015 Fees & Charges (excludes recharges) 7,500

20,409 Total Expenditure 17,506

20,409 Net Total - Mersey Tunnels (Direct costs only) 17,506

Page 33



Projection 18/19 ASSET MANAGEMENT Draft Budget 19/20

(£'000) Expenditure (£'000)

6,700 Employees 6,927

4,835 Premises 5,069

195 Transport 235

291 Supplies & Services 316

12,021 Total Expenditure 12,546

Income:

-1,423 Other Income -1,522

-1,423 Total Income -1,522

10,598 Net Total - Asset Management 11,024

Projection 18/19 IT Draft Budget 19/20

(£'000) Expenditure (£'000)

1,723 Employees 1,807

0 Premises 0

9 Transport 9

2,252 Supplies & Services 2,353

3,984 Total Expenditure 4,170

Income:

-                                 LCRCA -215

-121 Other Income -121

-121 Total Income -336

3,863 Net Total - IT 3,833

Projection 18/19 FINANCE Draft Budget 19/20

(£'000) Expenditure (£'000)

925 Employees 1,133

0 Premises 0

1 Transport 0

110 Supplies & Services 29

1,036 Total Expenditure 1,162

Income:

-185 LCRCA -186

-185 Total Income -186

851 Net Total - Finance 976

Projection 18/19 AUDIT Draft Budget 19/20

(£'000) Expenditure (£'000)

300 Employees 392

0 Premises 0

1 Transport 1

24 Supplies & Services 30

0 Fees & Charges (excludes recharges) 0

325 Total Expenditure 422

Income:

-25 LCRCA -121

-25 Total Income -121

300 Net Total - Audit 302

Page 34



Projection 18/19 LEGAL, PROCUREMENT & DEMOCRATIC SERVICES Draft Budget 19/20

(£'000) Expenditure (£'000)

1,007 Employees 1,220

0 Premises 0

9 Transport 12

235 Supplies & Services 134

0 Fees & Charges (excludes recharges) 0

1,251 Total Expenditure 1,366

Income:

-                                 LCRCA -173

-16 Other Income -32

-16 Total Income -205

1,235 Net Total - Legal, Procurement & Democratic Services 1,161

Projection 18/19 PROGRAMME MANAGEMENT OFFICE Draft Budget 19/20

(£'000) Expenditure (£'000)

331 Employees 596

0 Premises 0

2 Transport 2

1 Supplies & Services 6

0 Fees & Charges (excludes recharges) 1

334 Total Expenditure 604

Income:

-102 LCRCA -166

-                                 Other Income 0

-102 Total Income -166

232 Net Total - Programme Management Office 438

Projection 18/19 CORPORATE COSTS Draft Budget 19/20

(£'000) Expenditure (£'000)

4,112 Employees 4,112

0 Premises 0

0 Transport 0

442 Supplies & Services 455

20 Fees & Charges (excludes recharges) 20

4,574 Total Expenditure 4,587

4,574 Net Total - Corporate Costs 4,587

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



DETAILED CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2019/20

Description £'000

Rail Capital Programme

LSP Renewals -  RTI Platform screens 160

St Helens Junction Park and Ride 0

Maghull North (LGF) 0

Newton-le-Willows (LGF) 0

Halton Curve (LGF) 0

Station Validators 1,174

Spital 365

Bromborough Station P&R 100

Liverpool Central Development 0

Park & Ride Schemes - Lea Green & Widnes 40

LTRS 600

Prescott Lifts 3,450

Total Rail Programme 5,889

Bus Capital Programme

Spellow Lane/County Road 194

Rice Lane/Orrell Lane 360

Black Bull 387

City Centre Duke Street 143

Refurbishment of Tunnels Building 15

Accessibility Upgrades 90

Life Expired Bus Shelters - based on H&S priority 74

Journey Planner Upgrade 120

Funding for uncommitted schemes 600

Total Bus Programme 1,984

Ferries Capital Programme

Renew Existing Vessels Engine Control Systems 265

Fixed Fire System Renewal Iris then Snowdrop 30

Bridges & Pontoons 250

Total Ferries Programme 545

Mersey Tunnels Capital Programme

SCADA - Upgrade of Refuge Control System 250

Qway  North John Street Transformers 640

Vehicle Replacement Programme 50

CCTV 350

Vent Station Interior Refurbishment Programme 200

Queensway Tunnel Rewire Outline Design 0

Queensway Tunnel Rewire Build 292

Bidston Moss Viaduct -Gore Link 1,200

Queensway/ Georges Dock Concrete Repairs 551

KWay - Asset Protection (liverpool Waters) 25

Qway HV Switches at North John Street (&Transformers post 

18/19) 240

Wallasey Compound & Vehicle Wash 165

Page 37



Kingsway Retaining Walls 225

Radio System Upgrade 70

Kinsgsway Renew Jet fans 500

Kingsway Replace sump pump drainage pipework 2,750

Kingsway Transformer & HV switch Renewals 600

Inspections & Assessments 100

ICT Network Equipment Renewals 550

Total Tunnels Programme 8,758

IT Capital Programme

Transforming Ticketing through Smart Technology 1,200

Smart Ticketing Programme 1,200

Hubs Capital Programme

Queen Square Facility Building Refurb 200

Total Hubs Programme 200

IT Capital Programme

Desktop Computers/Laptops/Refresh 40

Office 365 Project 60

Data Network Refresh 150

SATA disk Replacement 100

Veronis 80

SOS Telephony Upgrade 20

Total IT Capital Programme 450

Corporate Capital Programme

Support Services 220

Total Corporate Programme 220

Rolling Stock Capital Programme 110,000

Total Capital Programme Spend 129,246

Funded by £'000

Borrowing 110,000

RCCO 7,500

Grant Funding 6,268

Grant from the CA 5,478

Total Funding 129,246

Page 38



LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY 
 
 
To:      The Chair and Members of the Transport Committee  
 
Meeting:     31 January 2019 
 
Authority/Authorities Affected:  All 
 
EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL ITEM: No 
 
 

REPORT OF MERSEYTRAVEL  
 

QUARTERLY BUS UPDATE 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update Members of the Transport Committee on key 

bus issues relating to the third quarter of 2018/19. 
 

1.2 Specifically, the report will provide Members with the third quarterly Bus Alliance 
update of 2018/19, the latest progress on improving the procurement, management 
and quality of supported services through a series of reforms, and progress on 
developing the commitment of the Liverpool City Region (LCR) Devolution Deal in 
respect of improving bus services, along with updates on a number of other key 
matters. 
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1. It is recommended that Members of the Transport Committee note the contents of 

the report. 
 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Improving Bus Punctuality 
 

3.1.1 Merseytravel is leading on developing a range of interventions that will 
transform the bus offer across the Liverpool City Region and greatly improve 
the appeal of bus against private transport.  This work aligns with both the 
aspirations of the Bus Alliance and the Transforming Cities Fund. 

 
3.1.2 The Combined Authority of the Liverpool City Region (LCRCA) has agreed, 

as part of its approach to commissioning projects through the Transforming 
Cities Fund, that improving bus journeys should be one of its three thematic 
priorities for the region. 

 
3.1.3 Through Bus Alliance Workshops and analysing route data, five bus 

corridors have been initially prioritised to be targeted for improvements.  

Page 39

Agenda Item 6



These are A57 (Prescot Road), A562 (Smithdown Road), B5178 (Wavertree 
Road Corridor), the A59 (Walton Road / Scotland Road) and A567 (Stanley 
Road) Corridors. These corridors were chosen as they have the greatest 
numbers of services and passengers travelling along then and link future 
areas of development in the Liverpool City Region 

 
3.1.4 A Steering group comprising of representatives from Merseytravel, Knowsley 

Metropolitan Borough Council, Liverpool City Council, Sefton Metropolitan 
Borough Council, St Helens Metropolitan Borough Council and operators of 
the Bus Alliance operators, will oversee feasibility work including the 
development of the overall approach, with specific working groups 
developing the detailed transformational improvement plans for each 
corridor.  The Steering Group met for the first time in December 2018 with a 
programme of meetings planned for the New Year. Progress will be reported 
to both the LCR Bus Alliance, the Key Route Network (KRN) Group and the 
Transport Advisory Group (TAG) on a regular basis.  

 
3.2 LCR Bus Alliance 
 

3.2.1 The first draft of the 2019/20 LCR Bus Alliance Business and Investment 
Plan has been completed and outlines proposed investment and milestones 
which aim to improve punctuality and reliability across the network, improve 
the customer journey experience, ensure a simple, easy to understand bus 
network, reduce the environmental impact of bus travel and increase its 
social value and to increase patronage and bus as the mode of choice. This 
draft is to be considered by the Bus Alliance Programme Board in early 
January before being approved before the end of the financial year. 

 
3.2.2 The milestones and Key Performance indicators of the LCR Bus Alliance are 

laid out in the Performance Management framework 2018/2019, along with 
the 2018/19 investment plan and 2017 – 2020 Outcome measures. 

 
3.2.3 In quarter three of 2018/19, completed milestones of the LCR Bus Alliance 

have included:- 
 
(a) The successful Intelligent Traffic Signalling (ITS) trial (where existing traffic 

signals are used to prioritise the movement of buses) that took place on 
Route 10 earlier in the year, has now been evaluated and the condition of the 
traffic signal infrastructure on route 86 has been reviewed prior to the roll out 
of this technology at 31 junctions along this route by the end of quarter four. 

 
(b) The bus stop clearway and bus boarders design at the Muirhead Avenue 

East /Marldon Road junction has been completed and the stop is now being 
monitored to determine if the changes made have solved the indiscriminate 
parking problem.  

 
(c) The Bus Services Protocol has been agreed and is now being implemented.  

As part of the Bus Alliance, bus operators (Stagecoach & Arriva) have 
agreed to consult on significant changes to commercial services in advance 
of making any changes.  In line with this agreement, Merseytravel will also 
consult on any significant changes proposed to the supported network.   

 

Page 40



To date, consultation has taken place on 408/409 Arriva Service, 204 and X3 
Stagecoach services, 121, 214/215 supported services and we are currently 
in the process of consulting on 106 service.  Engagement with both 
stakeholders and the public has taken place to encourage feedback to inform 
the process and the inaugural tranche of the process has worked well overall 
with some adjustments to the process to be included when it is next used.  

 
(d) New Stagecoach vehicles have been introduced to the network during 

Quarter 3.  This comprises a £3.4 million spend on seventeen new buses that 
are predominantly operating along the 10A route and a further £70,000 on 
the refurbishment of fourteen others operating along 20/21 route.   

 
Arriva is scheduled to spend £2 million on the introduction of new vehicles in 
Quarter 1 of 2019/20.  In the meantime, 30 existing Arriva vehicles have 
been refurbished at a cost of £180,000.  

 
3.2.4 Progress is ongoing in delivering the following key milestones:- 
 
(a) Punctuality improvement works along the A59 bus corridor continue as 

planned, with drawings and design work for all three schemes either under 
development or with Liverpool City Council for consideration. 

 
(b) A number of traffic modelling studies are underway. At Wavertree Road, the 

topographical survey is complete and a revised road marking scheme is 
currently being designed by Liverpool City Council. While traffic observations 
undertaken on the Woodchurch Road corridor in the AM and PM peaks, have 
identified inefficient signalling and initiated conversations regarding the 
current state of the traffic control system in this area and possible 
improvements that could be made.  

 
(c) The review of bus station departure charges continues, with changes based 

on a more progressive discount/penalty scheme linked to vehicle emission 
standards currently being consulted on with bus operators.  These are due to 
be implemented in early 2019 and subject to a separate report.  

 
(d) The ‘Vote Bus’ marketing campaign was completed in Quarter 3 as part of 

the wider Better by Bus campaign and included social media activities, 
Facebook and Instagram brand awareness advertising campaigns, along 
with targeted digital, on bus and radio campaigns.   

 
(e) Work is progressing with planning and implementing the Bus Rerouting 

Strategy as part of the Liverpool City Centre Connectivity Programme.  
Although planning approval is still to be agreed, the City Centre Bus Hub is 
due for completion during the first quarter of 2019/20. Proposed plans for 
Duke Street have been shared with Liverpool City Council and a design for 
parking spaces, bus stops and changes to the speed reduction measures are 
now agreed, which support the bus routing requirements relating to the wider 
Liverpool City Centre Connectivity schemes. 

 
 
 
 

Page 41



3.3 LCR Devolution Deal – alternative delivery model for bus 
 
3.3.1 The development of the Outline Business Case (OBC) is split into four 

phases with Phase one (advance preparation) having been completed during 
Q3 2018/19. 

 
3.3.2  Phase two (Option and Analytical Framework development) is scheduled to 

be completed during quarter four of 2018/19. 
 
3.3.3 Phase three (Economic and Financial Appraisal) spanning quarters one and 

two of 2019/20.  
 
3.3.4 Phase four (Draft Outline Procurement Documentation) due to be completed 

by the end of quarter three 2019/20.  It is planned that the OBC will be 
finalised in Quarter 4 of 2019/20 with democratic consideration to follow.  

 
3.3.5 Notices of intent have been published and data requests to operators are 

due to be sent out early in 2019.   
 

3.4 Supported bus services contract reform 
 

3.4.1 Merseytravel’s Bus and Legal teams have been working together to improve 
the conditions of contract for supported bus services, in order to incentivise 
quality and compliment the LCR Bus Strategy and the improvement 
interventions of the Bus Alliance. 

 
3.4.2 The reform has included the development of new conditions (which all 

operators of supported services migrated to in the first quarter of 2018/19), 
development of operator league tables, the inclusion of quality in the 
procurement process and the development of a Dynamic Purchasing System 
(DPS). 

 
3.4.3 With support from the bus team, operators are now submitting returns on 

these new conditions of contract and improvements in a reduction in the 
volume of complaints, failures, late operations and service credits have 
already been seen.   

 
3.4.4 The next stage in the project is to confirm the price to quality ratio and enter 

into the DPS. It is planned to run the new approach in tandem with April 2019 
tenders as a live trial.    

 
3.5 Other key work areas  

 
3.5.1 Liverpool City Centre Connectivity  
 

Merseytravel is working closely with Operators in developing the bus 
rerouting strategy to support Liverpool City Council in delivering its 
Connectivity Programme. 

 
The new Bus Hub proposed at the Old Haymarket site is due to be 
considered for planning approval quarter 4 of 2018/19 and is a key enabler 

Page 42



for the finalisation and implementation of a new bus routing strategy for the 
city centre 

 
A communications strategy involving Merseytravel, bus operators and 
Liverpool City Council is in development, and will be finalised once the 
programme of works in the City Centre becomes clear, including planning 
approval for the Bus Hub. 

 
3.5.2 Christmas Parking Enforcement  

 
A partnership between Merseytravel, Liverpool City Council, Merseyside 
Police, Stagecoach, Arriva and Halton Transport helped to mitigate the 
effects of traffic congestion in Liverpool City Centre during the lead up to 
Christmas.  

 
The scheme was designed to support the city’s economy through the 
reduction of illegal parking in bus stops and along key bus routes, and the 
monitoring of traffic flow to ensure that bus services remain as punctual as 
possible and get passengers to where they want to go. 

 
Illegal parking, which can cause significant traffic congestion at busy times, is 
being addressed through parking enforcement in ‘hot spot’ areas, where bus 
operators and highways staff actively report illegal parking that they see 
causing a problem.  Police Community Support Officers and Police Officers 
stop unauthorised vehicles from dropping off in bus stops and at road 
junctions and from blocking yellow box junction markings in the city centre. 

 
This way of working to share information and resources was used in 2017 
and was judged to be more effective than if each agency had worked alone. 
This scheme is in place till Christmas Eve with a pilot planned for the New 
Year to assess the benefits of a similar arrangement throughout the year.  

 
3.5.3  Rolling Stock Mock up Support  

 
Throughout October and November the Bus Network Performance Survey 
team acted in an ambassadorial role on behalf of the Rolling Stock project 
team to welcome the members of the public who were visiting the mock-up of 
the new trains for the Merseyrail network. This was initially situated at Pacific 
Road Museum, before moving on to Lime Street Station.  The team assisted 
in supporting over 10k visitors over the 4 week period answering questions 
and demonstrating the train’s new features.  

 
3.5.4 Stops and Shelters 

 
From February 2019, the Bus Network Performance Survey Team will begin 
to undertake surveys on stops and shelters across the Key Route Network of 
roads. This important piece of work will establish a base for Merseytravel and 
Bus Alliance Partners to assess recent customer satisfaction survey levels 
as identified in the work of Transport Focus. The surveys have been 
designed, with training to take place in January 2019. 

 
3.5.5 1000 days of data  

Page 43



 
 The 1000 days of data project will allow the retention of historical bus 

performance data for 3 years rather than the current 3 months.  The ability to 
do this will facilitate better monitoring and reporting of the performance of the 
bus network over a longer period of time. 

 
The replacement ‘ebus’ system is currently in testing.  During this phase, it 
has helped improve tracking coverage, and is exceeding the overall 
performance of the existing system.  The new system is due to go live in 
Quarter 4 and then the old system will be switched off 

 
3.5.6 Avon 

 
In October, Avon Buses, a Wirral-based bus operator, went into voluntary 
liquidation. This occurred without warning and coincided with the opening 
first full day of the Giants Spectacular event.  

 
With a fleet of circa 30 buses and a workforce of 100 staff, this caused 
considerable disruption to bus services in the Wirral network.  However, the 
collective efforts of the Bus Alliance partners and Merseytravel mitigated the 
overall impact of this. Arriva and Stagecoach stepped in, where possible, 
with short term commercial replacements which in many cases mirrored the 
former Avon network. Merseytravel let emergency tenders to fill gaps where 
Avon services had once operated.  

 
This interim measure gave Merseytravel the time to consider longer term 
provision requirements and in most cases provision is still in place or 
available through interchange. 
 
Due to budget limitations, some evening and weekend services have not yet 
been replaced, causing a loss of connectivity for some parts of Wirral 

 
3.5.7 Giants Spectacular Event 
 

The Giants Spectacular Event toured Liverpool City Centre and New 
Brighton in October, attracting an estimated 1.3 million visitors  
 
The associated disruption that came with such a large event, required a 
considerable amount of planning and preparation.  The diversion plans 
developed, needed to take into consideration the routes, road closures and 
estimated crowd numbers travelling into see the event each day, but also 
balance this with the needs of commuters travelling by bus into work and 
ensure that a simple and straightforward message was communicated to 
drivers and passengers throughout the duration of the event. 
 
The event was deemed a huge success, with thousands of people moved 
through Queen Square efficiently and calmly. During the whole four day 
event days both Merseytravel and Operator staff behaved professionally and 
a number went above and beyond the call of duty. 

 
 
 

Page 44



 
 
 
4. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1. Financial 
 
  There are no new financial implications at this stage 
 
4.2. Human Resources 
 
  There are no new human resources implications at this stage 
 
4.3. Physical Assets 
 

There are no new implications for physical assets at this stage. 
 

4.4. Information Technology 
 

There are no new implications for information technology at this stage. 
 
 

5. RISKS AND MITIGATION 
 
5.1 The Combined Authority’s Programme Management Office ensures that 

expenditure, milestones, risk and impact of each improvement that is delivered and 
is outlined in the Performance Management Framework 2018/19, is measured, 
monitored and reported. 
 

5.2 The Alternative Delivery Options Business Case process is led by an advisory team 
of Addleshaw Goddard (lead), Price Waterhouse Cooper and Steer and managed 
by a Governance structure lead by the Director of Resources. 
 

5.3 To ensure compliance, Merseytravel’s Legal and Procurement teams are heavily 
involved in the Reform of the supported bus services contract and procurement 
process. 

 
 
6. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

The equality and diversity implications of individual activities have been and will 
continue to be fully considered as part of developing the Bus Alliance Investment 
plans, bus service reviews and considerations as part of the Business Case for 
alternative bus delivery models in alignment with the Bus Services Act 2017. 
 
 

7. PRIVATE IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 There are no potential privacy implications as a result of this report 
 
 
 

Page 45



 
 
 
8. COMMUNICATION ISSUES 
 
8.1 A communications plan to support City Centre Bus Routing is in development, 

which will include bus operators and Liverpool City Council. 
 
8.2 There are no other new communications issues identified as a result of this.  The 

LCR Bus Alliance has a joint communications strategy and the Bus Team works 
closely with colleagues in Corporate Communications and Corporate Engagement.  
Some of the items mentioned above have been subject to separate 
communications.  

 
 
9. CONCLUSION 
 
9.1 This report has highlighted activities delivered in quarter three of 2018/19 by the 

LCR Bus Alliance and the commitment of the LCR Devolution Deal in respect of 
improving bus services.  Clear progress can also be seen as we seek to improve 
the procurement, management and quality of supported bus services through a 
series of reforms, whilst the team have dealt with a number of issues during the 
quarter, most notably the impact of Avon buses going into liquidation. 

 
 

MICK NOONE 
Director of Integrated Transport: Merseytravel 

 
 

Contact Officer(s): 
Matt Goggins, Head of Bus, matthew.goggins@merseytravel.gov.uk  
Laura Needham, Bus Strategy Programme Manager, 
laura.needham@merseytravel.gov.uk  
Liz Storey, Corporate Communications Manager, liz.storey@merseytravel.gov.uk  
 
Appendices: 
None 
 
 
Background Documents:  
None 
 
 
 

Page 46

mailto:matthew.goggins@merseytravel.gov.uk
mailto:laura.needham@merseytravel.gov.uk
mailto:liz.storey@merseytravel.gov.uk

	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Last Meeting
	Minutes

	4 Mersey Tunnel Tolls 2019/20
	Enc. 1 for Mersey Tunnel Tolls

	5 Budget Setting Report 2019/20
	Copy of Transport Committee Budget Report 2019-20 Appendicies
	Copy of Transport Committee Budget Report 2019-20 Appendicies 2

	6 Quarterly Bus Update

